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6 September 2019 

Ref 18482 

 

Romanous Constructions Pty Ltd 

Level 8, 10 Park Road 

HURSTVILLE NSW 2220 

 

Attn: Allen Romanous 

 

Dear Allen,  

 

PROPOSED HOTEL DEVELOPMENT 

301-305 KENT STREET, SYDNEY 

TRAFFIC AND PARKING MATTERS 

SSD 9694 

 

 

I refer to the Transport for NSW letter dated 3 July 2019 requesting additional information in 

respect of the above-mentioned development proposal. 

 

The following advice is provided in response to the traffic and parking matters raised in the letter. 

 

Proposed Basement Driveway Access 

 

A detailed analysis of the preferred driveway location was undertaken by Arup (17 December 

2018).  A copy of that report is attached. 

 

Figure 2 of 2 of the Arup report compares the hourly pedestrian volumes along the Kent Street 

and Erskine Street frontages of the site, and clearly demonstrates that pedestrian activity along 

the Kent Street footpath is significantly higher than pedestrian activity along the Erskine Street 

footpath. 

 

VTP Pty Ltd also undertook surveys of pedestrian activity along the frontages of the site.  Over 

the 6-hour duration of the surveys (6:30-9:30am and 3:30-6:30pm) the surveys counted 5059 

pedestrians along the Kent Street footpath, compared with 2387 pedestrians along the Erskine 

Street footpath, as set out in the table below: 

 
RESULTS OF PEDESTRIAN SURVEYS ON FOOTPATHS ALON GHT ESITE FRONTAGE 

NUMBER OF PEDESTRIANS PER HOUR 

 Erskine St Kent St  Erskine St Kent St 

6:30-9:30am 

7:30-8:30am 

8:30-9:30am 

155 

487 

596 

277 

917 

1309 

3:30-4:30pm 

4:30-5:30pm 

5:30-6:30pm 

241 

393 

515 

521 

1038 

997 

 1238 2503  1149 2556 

 

The survey results indicate that pedestrian volumes along the Kent Street frontage of the site are 

typically more than double the pedestrian volumes along the Erskine Street frontage of the site. 

 

Table 2 of the Arup report also made comparisons with pedestrian volumes recorded at other 

driveways across footpaths in Kent Street and Pitt Street which identified significantly higher 

traffic volumes using driveways across footpaths where the pedestrian volumes recorded were 

also significantly higher than is expected to occur at the subject site. 
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The Arup report also undertook a queuing assessment of the subject proposal which found that: 

 

• 93.2% of the time during peak hour, no vehicle queue would form at the entrance to the 

driveway, and 

 

• 99.5% of the time during the peak hour, 1 vehicle or less would be waiting for pedestrians to 

pass prior to entering the driveway. 

 

VTP Pty Ltd also undertook an analysis of the proposed driveway, using the SIDRA capacity 

analysis program.  The results of that analysis are summarised in table 1 below and the detailed 

“Movement Summaries” area attached, revealing that: 

 

• in the AM peak the 98th percentile queue in the left lane of Erskine Street would be 0.3 

vehicles waiting for pedestrians to pass prior to entering the driveway, and  

 

• in the PM peak the 98th percentile queue in the left lane of Erskine Street would be 0.4 

vehicles waiting for pedestrians to pass prior to entering the driveway. 

 

In summary, the capacity analysis demonstrates that the 98th percentile queue length (i.e. which 

occurs only 2% of the time) at the proposed driveway would be less than half a vehicle, and that 

any momentary queues would be well clear of the Kent Street/Erskine Street intersection which is 

located some 27m distance from the proposed driveway.  As such, it is clear that traffic and bus 

operations would not be affected in any way by the proposed driveway. 

 

 
TABLE 1 - RESULTS SIDRA CAPACITY ANALYSIS 

PROPOSED SITE ACCESS DRIVEWAY IN ERSKINE STREET 

 AM PEAK PM PEAK 

 Level of 

Service 

98% 

Queue 

Queue 

Length 

Level of 

Service 

98% 

Queue 

Queue 

Length 

Left-Turn into Site off Erskine St A 0.3 veh 1.8m A 0.4 veh 3.1m 

 

  

Freight and Servicing 

 

It is appreciated that the Council’s DCP servicing requirements assumes that there will not be any 

overlaps in the servicing demands of a hotel building, whereas in reality there is the potential to 

share the use of the loading dock through a management regime, particularly in circumstances 

where the entire building will be occupied by a single entity.  

 

A separate Loading Dock Management Plan will be prepared as part of the Stage 2 DA to ensure 

that the truck and light commercial service vehicle bays will satisfactorily accommodate the 

typical servicing schedule provided in Table 2. 

 

 

Table 2: Typical Hotel Servicing Schedule 

 

 Item Frequency Time 

Linen Once per day Midday (TBC) 

Food and Beverage One per day Morning (TBC) 

Waste Removal Once per day Early Morning (TBC) 

 

Accordingly, all servicing needs of the building will be pre-scheduled to ensure all inbound 

commercial vehicles will have a vacant service bay ready, such that there will never be an 

instance where these vehicles will need to circulate the local road network to wait for a servicing 

bay to be vacated. 
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Passenger Pick-up and Drop-off for Point to Point Transport and Coaches 

 

The proposed development makes provision for 2 drop-offs/pick-ups spaces on the lower ground 

floor level of the car parking area, in accordance with DCP requirements.  In addition, there are a 

further 2 parking spaces located on the ground floor level adjacent to the designated drop-

off/pick-up spaces which could also be utilised for drop-off/pick-up uses, should the need ever 

arise. 

 

It is noted that all of the parking spaces located on the ground floor could accommodate a range 

of vans and minibuses (eg. the 12-14 seater Toyota Hi Ace minibus).  In addition, the proposed 

loading bay could also be used to accommodate a larger minibus (eg. A 22 seater Toyota 

Coaster), noting that the loading bay is only expected to be used perhaps 3 times per day.  The 

Loading Dock Management Plan could be used to make provision for those larger 22 seat 

minibuses, should the need ever arise. 

 

It is noted in this regard that a hotel was recently approved at 7-9 Wilmot Street, Sydney which 

did not make any provision for drop-off/pick-up spaces, minibuses or large coaches. 

 

By comparison, the subject development makes provision for drop-off/pick-up parking spaces in 

accordance with the DCP requirements which could also be used to accommodate smaller 

minibuses. 

 

TfNSW concerns could therefore be adequately addressed by a development consent condition 

specifying “All buses dropping-off or picking-up hotel patrons must do so using the lower ground 

floor level car parking area. Buses exceeding 7m in length must not be used for dropping-off or 

picking-up hotel patrons”.   

 

Waste Vehicle Parking 

 

The proposed development will not be serviced by any vehicle larger than a 6.4m SRV truck to 

collect waste. 

 

TfNSW concerns can be addressed by appropriately specifying “no vehicles larger than 6.4m 

SRV are to service the site” in the development conditions of consent. 

 

Construction Pedestrian and Traffic Management 

 

A preliminary Construction Traffic Management Plan is contained within the DA traffic report 

and is deemed fit-for-purpose for the current stage of the application. 

 

A detailed Construction & Pedestrian Traffic Management Plan will be prepared at CC stage in 

response to the detailed DA consent conditions which will specify in detail Council’s 

requirements for the CPTMP, in accordance with TfNSW requirements. 

 

I trust the above advice provided in this letter satisfies your requirements. Please do not 

hesitate to contact the undersigned should you have any queries or require any further 

information regarding the above. 
 

Yours faithfully  

 

 
 

 

Thomas Yang 

Traffic Engineer (NER) 

Varga Traffic Planning Pty Ltd



 

 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 


